
Uncovering Kilburnôs History ï Part 4  

Welcome back to this fourth article in the Kilburn local history series. If you missed Part 3, you 

will find it here. 

Railway lines began crossing Kilburnôs land in 1837, with the coming of the London and 

Birmingham Railway. Kilburn (now High Road) station opened in 1851. In the 1860s Edgware 

Road (later Brondesbury) station came on the Hampstead Junction Railway, and Kilburn and 

Brondesbury (Kilburn today) station was opened on the Metropolitan Railway in 1879.  

 
1. Metropolitan Railway Station and Bridge, Kilburn High Road, c.1910. ( www.images-of-london.co.uk ) 

The earlier railways, however, did not stimulate a large growth in Kilburn. The main 

developments were still along the Edgware Road, which was served by horse buses and later 

trams. In 1856 22 omnibuses a day ran to London Bridge and by 1896 south Kilburn was served 

by over 45 buses an hour. The start of the 20th century brought a motorbus service to Oxford 

Circus, and in 1915 Kilburn Park station on the Electric Railway line was the first underground 

railway in Kilburn. 

 
2. Kilburn Park Underground Station, October 2020. (Photo by Irina Porter) 

In Charles Dickenôs Dictionary of London, published in 1879, Kilburn was described as óa newly 

built district at the far end of the Edgware Roadô. Its development, beyond a few large houses, 
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had begun in the south, after Lady Salusbury sold her properties to the Church Commissioners 

in 1856. The following year the Commissioners made a series of agreements with James 

Bailey, a builder from Maida Vale, who later moved to Brondesbury Lodge.  

In 1859 Bailey had built Brondesbury Terrace and started work in Canterbury Road. By 1867, 

he had put up about 550 houses, including Cambridge and Oxford Roads, using architectural 

pattern books, and marketing his development as Kilburn Park. A number of houses he built, 

along with the Duke of Cambridge and The Brondesbury public houses (both now converted 

for residential use), are now locally listed buildings within the South Kilburn Conservation Area. 

 
3. Cambridge Road, c.1910. (Image from the internet: www.images-of-london.co.uk ) 

 
4. Cambridge Gardens, October 2020. (Photo by Irina Porter) 

Other speculative builders followed Bailey to the area. Speculative building ï when houses 

were built before a buyer or a tenant was found ï put developers at risk if they over extended 

themselves, so many went bust. Through the rest of the 19th century, local house building 
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expanded northwards. You can see the extent of development in 1875 (when Willesden Local 

Board was established, with a population of 18,559), and again by 1895 (when it had become 

Willesden Urban District, with 79,260 people) on this map. 

 
5. Development in the east of Willesden parish as at 1875 and 1895. (From ñThe Willesden Survey, 1949ò) 

By the 1880s, businesses like the United Land Company would purchase plots of land, 

subdivide them into smaller plots and sell those at auctions, resulting in smaller developers 

doing the actual building. The names of the roads would often come from old estates in the 

area (Mapesbury, Brondesbury), or places connected with former landowners. The Salusbury 

name lives on today, in a road and the school situated on it, as well as a pub, wine store and 

other local amenities. In another example, the Powell Cottons owned the land on the Shoot Up 

Hill estate, and the names of the roads there reflected their Kent connections (Fordwych, 

Minster, and Westbere Roads, etc). 

One famous resident of Kilburn was the artist Louis Wain (1860 ï 1939), who lived at 41 

Brondesbury Road. Louis Wain was famous for the drawings of anthropomorphized (with 

human features) cats. Born in Clerkenwell, Wain studied at the West London School of Art, 

where he was also assistant master. In 1882 he joined the staff of the Illustrated Sporting and 

Dramatic News and four years later that of the Illustrated London News.  

When Wain was 20, his father died, and Louis became the main supporter of his mother and 

five sisters. At 23 he married the family governess, Emily Richardson, who died of cancer within 

3 years of their marriage. During her illness the family took in a stray kitten, named Peter, who 

cheered her up during her illness and gave Louis a direction for his art, which became his 

passion. From the 1880s onwards Wainôs cats walked upright in human clothing of the highest 

fashion, came with all sorts of facial expressions, enjoyed smoking, played musical 

instruments, hosted tea parties, played games, went fishing and to the theatre. These parodies 

of human behaviour became immensely popular.  


